
This notice is posted in compliance with PA 267 Of 1976 as amended (open meetings act) MCLA 41.7 2A (2) (3) and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. (ADA) Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Northfield Township Office, (734) 449-
5000 seven days in advance.  

8350 Main Street, Whitmore Lake, MI  48189-0576         Telephone: (734) 449-5000              Fax: (734) 449 –0123          Website:  
www.twp.northfield.mi.us 

NORTHFIELD TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 

June 15, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 
Second Floor, Public Safety Building 

8350 Main Street, Whitmore Lake, MI 48189 
 
AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER      

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    

3. ROLL CALL        

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

6. CORRESPONDENCE 

7. REPORTS 

A. Board of Trustees Report 

B. ZBA 

C. Staff Report 

D. Planning Consultant Report 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. Case #JPC160003 – Recommend to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the request of Living Water Lutheran 
Church of Whitmore Lake, 200 Barker Road, Whitmore Lake, MI 48189, parcel number B-02-06-105-025 for a 
Conditional Use to allow an approximately 7,200 sq. ft. Church under Section 36-391 (23). The parcel is zoned GC – 
General Commercial. (attachment 1) 

 

9.    OLD BUSINESS: 

A. Case #JPC160001 – Recommend to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the request of Northfield 
Township, 2727 East North Territorial Road, Whitmore Lake, MI 48189 (Township Fire Station #2) for a Conditional 
Use Permit to allow a Wireless Communication Facility (Cellular Telephone Tower) for New Par dba Verizon 
Wireless. Verizon Wireless proposes to construct a new 120’ Monopole (with 7’ maximum lighting rod on top). The 
parcel number is B-02-27-100-003 and is zoned AR – Agriculture (attachment 2) (attachment 2) 

 

10. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Case #JPC160003 – Recommend to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the request of Living Water Lutheran 
Church of Whitmore Lake, 200 Barker Road, Whitmore Lake, MI 48189, parcel number B-02-06-105-025 for a 
Conditional Use to allow an approximately 7,200 sq. ft. Church under Section 36-391 (23). The parcel is zoned GC 
– General Commercial. (attachment 1) 

 
B. Discussion on 2016 Goals & Objectives: Lakeside Community Park, Main Street, Business Oriented Zonings and 

what can the Planning Commission do to make it more attractive to prospective businesses. Including Main Street 
Concepts. 

 

11. MINUTES: May 18, 2016 Regular Meeting 

12. POLICY REVIEW AND DISCUSSION 

13. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

14. COMMENTS FROM THE COMMISSIONERS 

15. ANNOUNCEMENT:  Special Meeting June 29, 2016 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

http://www.twp.northfield.mi.us/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(ATTACHMENT 1) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









































 

Lutheran Church of Whitmore Lake 

Expected Week in the Life of Living Water Lutheran Church of Whitmore Lake at 200 Barker Road 

Expected Week in the Life of Living Water.docx  Page 1 of 3 

Sunday 

8:30 a.m. Pastor and staff (up to 6 people) arrive, unlock church and prepare for Education Hour 

and Worship 

 

9:00 a.m.  Education Hour begins with approximately 20 adults in Pastor’s Bible Class and up to 20   

  children in either Sunday School or in the Nursery during the same time. 

 

10:15 a.m. Family Worship begins with up to 150 people (adults and children) worshiping 

together in the worship center.  Nursery will contain two adults as staff and up to 10 

babies and toddlers. 

 

11:30 a.m. Worship ends, people remain for fellowship time. 

 

12:00 p.m. Monthly Church Council Meeting in class room with up to 10 people attending. 

 

  1:00 p.m. Only Church Council Meeting in class room, rest of the people are gone from the  

  building. 

  

 2:00 p.m. Church Council Meeting ends.  Everyone leaves and church is locked. 

 

 6:30 p.m. Small Group Meeting with up to 15 people meeting in class room at church. 

 

 9:30 p.m. Everyone leaves and church is locked. 

 

 

Monday 

8:30 a.m. Pastor and staff (up to 2 people) arrive and unlock church. 

 

9:00 a.m. Church visiting hours (up to 6 people in church at one time). 

 

5:00 p.m. Pastor and staff (up to 6 people) leave and lock church. 

 

7:00 p.m. Small Group Meeting (e.g. Elders meet monthly) with up to 15 people meeting in class  

  room at church. 

 

9:30 p.m. Everyone leaves and locks church. 

 

 

Tuesday 

8:30 a.m. Pastor and staff (up to 2 people) arrive and unlock church. 

 

9:00 a.m. Church visiting hours (up to 6 people in church at one time). 



 

Lutheran Church of Whitmore Lake 

Expected Week in the Life of Living Water Lutheran Church of Whitmore Lake at 200 Barker Road 

Expected Week in the Life of Living Water.docx  Page 2 of 3 

5:00 p.m. Pastor and staff (up to 6 people) leave and lock church. 

 

7:00 p.m. Small Group Meeting with up to 15 people meeting in class room at church. 

 

9:30 p.m. Everyone leaves and locks church. 

 

Wednesday 

8:30 a.m. Pastor and staff (up to 2 people) arrive and unlock church. 

 

9:00 a.m. Church visiting hours (up to 6 people in church at one time). 

 

Noon  The Advent Wednesdays leading up to Christmas and Ash Wednesday and Lenten 

Wednesdays leading up to Easter, will hold mid-day worship services (expect up to 50  

people) as an option for those who cannot make the evening services. 

 

1:00 p.m. Worshipers leave, Pastor and staff with visitors meeting (up to 6 people total). 

 

5:00 p.m. Pastor and staff (up to 6 people) leave and lock church. 

 

7:00 p.m. Small Group Meeting with up to 15 people meeting in class room at church.   

  Thanksgiving Eve and the following Advent Wednesdays leading up to Christmas, will  

  hold worship service (expect up to 75 people in worship). 

 

8:30 p.m. Worshipers leave, Pastor and staff with visitors meeting (up to 6 people total). 

 

9:30 p.m. Everyone leaves and locks church. 

 

Thursday 

8:30 a.m. Pastor and staff (up to 2 people) arrive and unlock church. 

 

9:00 a.m. Church visiting hours (up to 6 people in church at one time).  Once a month, Mothers of 

Preschoolers (MPOS) will meet (up to 15 mothers with their children) during the school  

Year (they do not meet during the summer months). 

 

Noon  MOPS leave, Pastor and staff with visitors meeting (up to 6 people total). 

 

5:00 p.m. Pastor and staff (up to 6 people) leave and lock church. 

 

7:00 p.m. Small Group Meeting with up to 15 people meeting in class room at church.  Maundy 

 Thursday (before Easter), services will be held in the homes and not at the church) 

 

9:30 p.m. Everyone leaves and locks church. 



 

Lutheran Church of Whitmore Lake 

Expected Week in the Life of Living Water Lutheran Church of Whitmore Lake at 200 Barker Road 

Expected Week in the Life of Living Water.docx  Page 3 of 3 

Friday 

8:30 a.m. Pastor and staff (up to 2 people) arrive and unlock church. 

 

9:00 a.m. Church visiting hours (up to 6 people in church at one time). 

 

Noon  Good Friday (before Easter) will hold mid-day worship service (expect up to 50  

people) as an option for those who cannot make the evening service. 

 

1:00 p.m. Worshipers leave, Pastor and staff with visitors meeting (up to 6 people total). 

 

5:00 p.m. Pastor and staff (up to 6 people) leave and lock church. 

 

7:00 p.m. Small Group Meeting with up to 15 people meeting in class room at church.  Good  

  Friday worship service held the Friday before Easter (up to 75 people expected). 

 

9:30 p.m. Everyone leaves and locks church. 

 

 

Saturday 

8:30 a.m. Pastor and staff (up to 2 people) arrive and unlock church. 

 

9:00 a.m. Beginning in March 2017, twice a month will hold temporary clinic for expectant  

  mothers and mothers with infants under a year old.  Will schedule no more than 5  

  mothers an hour with 10 healthcare workers and volunteers assisting (up to 25 people  

  with children).  Luke 52 Clinic be responsible for all medical waste generated with  

  proper disposal off the premises. 

 

Noon  Expect one or two weddings a year with up to 150 people attending in the afternoon. 

 

5:00 p.m. Pastor and staff (up to 6 people) leave and lock church. 

 

7:00 p.m. Christmas Eve service (2016), expect up to 150 people in worship including Nursery. 

 

9:30 p.m. Everyone leaves and locks church. 



 

 

  
 

 

June 8, 2016 

 

 

Northfield Township 

Building & Zoning Department 

8350 Main Street, Suite A 

Whitmore Lake, Michigan 48189 

 

Regarding: Living Water Church 

Site Plan Review #1 

OHM Job Number: 0151-16-1031 

Conditional Use Review #1 

OHM Job Number: 0151-16-1037 

 

We have reviewed the site plan material, received by this office on May 23, 2016 for the above-referenced 
project based on the Township’s Engineering Standards.  Plans were prepared by Desine Inc. with a date of 
May 18, 2016.  The applicant is requesting Conditional Use and Site Plan approval for the existing general 
commercial site.  A general summary of the site, followed by our review comments and recommendations is 
noted below. 

 

General 

The existing site is located on parcel #B-02-06-105-025 with address 200 Barker Road.  The site is currently 
zoned as GC, General Commercial.  The applicant is proposing to convert the existing building into a 
worship center and an auxiliary storage structure into a youth center.  The applicant also proposes a vestibule 
addition to the existing building along with additional parking area. 

 

Utilities 

Water service for the existing site is supplied by a private on-site well.  Existing sanitary sewer service is 
provided by a connection to the public sewer along Barker Road.  The Applicant is proposing to install an 
additional well to provide fire suppression service.  The existing auxiliary structure, which is planned to be 
repurposed as a youth center, also includes the addition of new water and sewer services.  Water for the youth 
center is proposed to be connected to the existing domestic well and a septic holding tank is proposed for 
sanitary sewer.  The property has an existing connection to the Township’s public sanitary sewer.  In this case 
a septic tank is not permissible by Township ordinance or by the Washtenaw County Department of Public 
Health. 

 

Because of the change in building use, the number of Residential Equivalent Units (REUs) for the property 
will need to be assessed based on the proposed use of the site.  We have reviewed the proposed building use 
and site plan with the Township Sewer System Superintendent in order to calculate an appropriate REU 
assignment.  According to the Township Utilities Ordinance, churches are assigned a unit factor of 0.25 REU 
per 1,000 square feet.  Based on the unit factor and square footage of the building a total of 1.5 REUs will 
need to be assigned to this site.  It should be noted that if the youth center building is also proposed to be 
connected to the public sanitary sewer system, the REU assignment would need to be revised to account for 
that additional building area. 

 

 



Living Water Church Site Plan Review #1 & Conditional Use Review #1 
June 8, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 

Paving/Access/Grading 

Access to the site is provided from Barker Road by way of an existing asphalt drive.  The existing site has 
fifteen (15) parking spaces provided.  Additional parking is proposed north of the existing parking lot in the 
grass area by installing permeable, reinforced matting.  The Township Ordinance for off-street parking states 
that “all parking areas shall be paved with a concrete or asphaltic surface” [Sec. 36-762 (b)(3)]. 

 

The existing aisle on the north side of the site has a width of 16.7 feet.  Emergency vehicle circulation does 
not appear to be adequate for a WB-50 truck or a fire apparatus due to potential obstructions from parked 
vehicles in the proposed parking locations.  Dedicated fire lane signage shall be provided.  Proposed site 
access for emergency vehicle circulation and maneuverability will be evaluated by the Northfield Township 
Fire Department. 

 

Existing and proposed grades are shown via contours.  The parking lot has some spot grades, but more are 
necessary to ensure drainage patterns are correct and ADA compliance is met for the designated barrier-free 
parking spaces. 

 

Drainage 

The existing conditions appear to convey storm water runoff from the parking lot entering three (3) catch 
basins on the outside curb line of the parking lot that flow into an existing detention pond in the southwest 
corner of the property.  Storm water is detained and then discharged into the Horseshoe Lake Outlet 
(County) Drain.  In general, the drainage properties of the proposed site are the same as the existing site.  We 
note that the requirement for paving the additional proposed parking area will increase the impervious area of 
the site and will require evaluation of the storm water management system (storm sewer and detention pond).  
Any necessary modifications to the existing detention pond to accommodate the additional impervious 
surface stormwater flow must comply with the Rules and Guidelines of the Washtenaw County Water 
Resources Commissioner (WCWRC) and may require a permit from the WCWRC. 

 

Permits and Other Agency Approvals 

Copies of all permits and/or letters of waiver, obtained to date, shall be forwarded to this office.  The current 
status of all necessary permits should be included on the cover sheet.  We note that this project will require 
the following permits: 

 

• Washtenaw County Water Resources Commissioner for soil erosion and sedimentation control, work 
within the county drain easement, and any modification to the detention pond discharge into the 
Horseshoe Lake Outlet Drain 

• Northfield Township Fire Department approval for emergency vehicle access and maneuverability. 

• Northfield Township Building Department. 

 

Conclusion and Recommendations 

As submitted, the Conditional Use application appears to be in substantial compliance with the Township 
requirements and we recommend the Planning Commission consider approval, conditional on the site plan 
being approved. 

 

As submitted, the Site Plan does not appear to be in substantial compliance with the Northfield Township 
Site Plan requirements.  We recommend that these comments be addressed prior to consideration of the Site 
Plan for approval by the Planning Commission.  Please note that additional comments may be generated on 
future reviews based upon revised material being presented. 

 



Living Water Church Site Plan Review #1 & Conditional Use Review #1 
June 8, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 

1. If sewer service is desired for the proposed youth center it must be connected to the public sanitary 
sewer system and REU assignments revised accordingly. 

2. The proposed parking lot addition shall be paved with concrete or asphalt per the Township 
Ordinance. 

3. Fire lanes shall be designated by signs and/or pavement markings. 

4. Additional spot grades shall be provided for the parking lot to ensure drainage patterns are correct 
and ADA compliance is met for handicap parking spaces. 

5. Any necessary detention pond modifications shall be shown on the plans with preliminary 
calculations for the detention pond design. 

6. The plans shall include a landscape plan showing size, location, and type of all plant materials. 

7. Soil erosion and sedimentation control measures shall be shown on the plans. 

8. The plans shall include delineation of the 100-year floodplain.  If no floodplain exists, a note shall 
indicate so. 

 

If you have any questions regarding this review or any of the comments presented, feel free to contact us at 
(734) 522-6711 or jacob.rushlow@ohm-advisors.com. 

 

Sincerely, 

OHM ADVISORS  

 

 

     Jacob Rushlow, P.E. 

     Township Engineer  

 
cc: Howard Fink, Township Manager (via e-mail) 

Tim Hardesty, Northfield Township (via e-mail) 
William Wagner, Public Safety Director (via e-mail) 
Kurt Weiland, Building/Zoning Official (via e-mail) 
Ken Dignan, Planning Commission Chair (via e-mail) 
Sally Hodges, AICP, McKenna Associates (via e-mail) 
Frank Murdock, President, Living Water (via e-mail) 

 File 

 
P:\0126_0165\SITE_NorthfieldTwp\2016\0151161030_Living_Water_Church\1031-SP\Living_Water_Church_SP1.docx 



 

June 8, 2016 
 
Planning Commission 
Northfield Township  
8350 Main Street 
Whitmore Lake, MI 48189-0576 
 
Subject: Conditional Use Review #1; Living Water Church /200 Barker Road; Application received by 

Township on 5/13/2016. 
 
Dear Commissioners: 
 
We have reviewed the proposed 
application for conditional use approval 
submitted by Living Water Church for a 
new church to be located in an existing 
building at 200 Barker Road.   The site is 2.2 
acres and zoned GC (General Commercial) 
District.  The existing 6,160 sq. ft. building 
on the site is the former Lakeside Saddlery.  
The plan proposes to add a small 6’x10’ 
vestibule on the west side entrance to the 
building.  Our review of the site plan is 
under separate cover.   
 
CONDITIONAL USE COMMENTS 
Conditional use approval of a church, 
synagogue, cathedral, mosque, temple or 
other building used for public worship is 
subject to the general discretionary standards in Section 36-838 applicable to all conditional uses.  Our 
comments are provided below:     
 
A. Section 36-838. General Conditional Use Approval Requirements.  For conditional use approval to be 

granted, the Planning Commission and Township Board must find that the proposed use satisfies the 
following general criteria: 

 
1. Will be harmonious with and in accordance with the general objectives, intent and purpose of this 

chapter.   The applicant’s application includes a description of how the proposed use complies with 
the Ordinance criteria.  Further, a typical weekly schedule of events has been submitted to give a 
better understanding of the number of people present on the site at any one time, the potential 
traffic, and the related impacts the use could have on the surrounding area. As expected, the times 
of heaviest traffic will be before and after religious services, generally at times of lower traffic on the 
abutting public road.  The stated purpose of the GC zoning district is for general retail, service and 
repair business activities that serve the entire township and surrounding area, and which utilize 
major roads.   Reuse of this site and building for a church, while not a business use, would be 



Northfield Township Planning Commission 
Living Water Church, 200 Barker Road CU Review #1 
June 8, 2016 ~ Page 2 
 

consistent with the separation of more intense from less intense uses because of the site’s location 
between the freeway and the railroad tracks at an entrance to the downtown.  The use description 
indicates the outbuilding, labelled “to be repurposed”, is proposed as a future youth center, 
anticipated in about 2 years.   

 
2. Will be designed, constructed, operated, maintained and managed so as to be harmonious and 

appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity. The 
existing building is attractive and will not detract from the intended character of the general area.  
Photos of all 4 building elevations and the elevation plans for the vestibule must be provided and 
will be reviewed to be sure they are appropriate in appearance during site plan review.  
 
The Zoning Ordinance requires paved parking in all districts except, under specific circumstances, in 
the AR, Agricultural District.  The existing lot and drives are paved but additional parking spaces are 
required for the church use.  Although the plan proposes using a “green” material to reinforce the 
existing lawn for unpaved vehicle parking in the rear of the parcel and allow stormwater infiltration, 
the functioning of such material is dependent upon soils and construction techniques and the 
Zoning Ordinance does not permit commercial lots to be unpaved.     The plan will have to be revised 
prior to site plan approval to add sufficient paved parking.   

 
3.  Will be compatible with the natural environment and existing and future uses in the vicinity.   The 

site is bordered by railroad tracks to the east, and US-23 to the northwest.  To the south and west 
are commercial uses with some residential interspersed.   Reuse of the existing building is 
compatible with the natural environment, and as proposed will have no greater impacts of the 
existing and future uses than are present currently.    Churches are traditionally found in many 
different zoning districts, including residential and commercial.  The proposed church will be 
compatible with the uses in the vicinity. 

 
4. Will be compatible with the Township land use development plan.  The site and vicinity are master 

planned VC, Village Center, a district that promotes mixed uses with a village scale and character.  
Community support facilities, such as churches, are a compatible use in and area planned for Village 
Center.   Although the site is zoned GC, General Commercial (not a Village Center district), the 
proposed use is compatible with the Township’s land use development plan. 
 

5. Will be or can be served adequately by essential public facilities and services.    Access is to Barker 
Road, a paved rural major collector road.   Collector roads are intended to funnel traffic to arterial 
roads, like US-23.   Access to southbound US-23 is available just west of the site; northbound US-23 
traffic can exit at Barker Road and access the site from the freeway.   The site is served by public 
facilities and has access to emergency services.   Details of utility access will be addressed by the 
Township engineer during site plan review. 

 
6. Will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future neighboring uses.   As noted above, the 

proposed church is in a commercial zoning district and separated from concentrations of residential 
use by the railroad, freeway and distance.  It is adjacent to commercial uses.  Although the church 
use will increase weekend traffic to the site, the road infrastructure should be adequate to handle 
the traffic peaks with little disturbance to the area.   



Northfield Township Planning Commission 
Living Water Church, 200 Barker Road CU Review #1 
June 8, 2016 ~ Page 3 
 

 
7. Will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services.  

The proposed use should not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public 
facilities and services.  The building will be renovated and will have to meet all building codes for the 
assembly use.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
We recommend that the Planning Commission recommend that the Township Board grant approval of the 
conditional use application from Living Water Church for the proposed church at 200 Barker Road, subject to 
site plan approval.   
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
McKENNA ASSOCIATES 
 
 
 
 
Sara J. Hodges, AICP        Michael Deem 
Senior Vice President        Senior Planner 
 
 
cc:   Howard Fink, Northfield Township Manager, 8350 Main St., Whitmore Lake, MI  48189 
 Jacob Rushlow, OHM Advisors, 34000 Plymouth Road, Livonia, MI  48150 

Frank Murdock, President, Living Water Church, 9876 Main St., Whitmore Lake, MI 48189 
 
 



 

June 8, 2016 
 
Planning Commission 
Northfield Township  
8350 Main Street 
Whitmore Lake, MI 48189-0576 
 
Subject: Site Plan Review #1; Living Water Church /200 Barker Road; Application received by Township 

on 5/13/2016. 
 
Dear Commissioners: 
 
We have reviewed the above referenced 
application for site plan approval 
submitted by Living Water Church, to 
modify an existing 6,160 sq. ft. commercial 
building as a new church.    The site at 200 
Barker Road, is 2.2 acres in area and is 
zoned GC (General Commercial) District.  
The plan proposes to add a small 6’x10’ 
vestibule at the west side entrance to the 
building.  Our review of the conditional use 
application is under separate cover.     
  
COMMENTS 
Our comments that follow are based upon 
the requirements of the Northfield 
Township Zoning Ordinance, observation 
of the site and principles of good planning. 
 
1. Use. The GC, General Commercial District is intended for general retail, service, and repair business 

activities.  A church may be allowed in the GC district as a conditional use.  The church’s use description 
includes a children’s nursery and youth ministry spaces.  These uses are customarily accessory to a 
church use; in the case of the nursery, these would be children of families attending worship services, 
and in the case of the youth ministry, the activities would not overlap with times of worship. Our review 
of the associated conditional use application is under separate cover.   
 

2. Dimensional Requirements. The minimum lot area in the GC district is one acre, and the site is 2.2 
acres.  The existing building meets or exceeds the minimum required setbacks and is less than the 
maximum permitted height.  The north arrow on the plans must be corrected to point north.   
 

3. Access and Circulation.   The site’s driveway is on Barker Road.  The proposed site circulation is one way 
around the building, the same as it is now on the site, with ingress along the east side of the building 
and egress from the west side.   

 



Northfield Township Planning Commission 
Living Water Church, 200 Barker Road SPR Review #1 
June 8, 2016 ~ Page 2 
 

4. Parking.    
 

a. As described above, we believe the nursery and youth ministry will not generate more cars than will 
be present during maximum capacity of the worship center.  Thus, for purposes of calculating 
parking requirements, it is reasonable to use the maximum seating of the worship center as the cap, 
plus one space for each nursery employee.  The parking calculations on Sheet SP should be 
corrected to match the following: 

 

USE ORDINANCE 
STANDARD 

# PARKING SPACES REQUIRED # PARKING SPACES 
PROVIDED 

Churches, 
auditoriums, 
stadiums, sports 
arenas, theaters, 
dancehalls other 
than schools 

One space for each 
four seats 
 
One space for each 
employee (nursery, 
youth ministry) 

151 seats/4 = 38 spaces 
 
 
3 employees x 1 = 3 spaces 

 

 Total  41 spaces 48 spaces 

 
b. The site plan proposes 7 spaces more than the minimum required.   23 of the parking spaces are 

located on paved asphalt or concrete surface, as required by Section 36-762(b)(3).     In lieu of 
paving any additional parking lot, the plan proposes a green, pervious turf material surface for the 
remaining 25 spaces.   According to the specifications submitted, that material allows rainwater to 
naturally penetrate the ground and reduce the need for storm water detention.  However, the 
Zoning Ordinance does not permit this type of material as a parking lot surface.  The plan should be 
revised so that the required parking is all paved.    Also, if paving were provided, the parking lot 
could be laid out more efficiently, so the amount of pavement required would not need to be as 
large as the turf area shown. 

 
c. The Ordinance does provide that off-street parking spaces required for churches may be reduced by 

50% where churches are located in nonresidential districts and within 300 feet of existing usable 
public or private off-street spaces where permission is granted.  In this case, although the site is 
located in a nonresidential district, access to additional parking is very limited and likely not a 
practical solution.  

 
d. Under Section 36-762(b)(1), off-street parking spaces and all driveways must be setback a minimum 

of ten feet to any lot line, unless a wall, screen, or compact planting strip is provided as a parking 
barrier along that lot line.   The seven new parking spaces along the east lot line are setback 
approximately eight feet, thus the parking layout should be revised to either meet the required ten-
foot setback, or provide a hedge or other screening. 

 
e. The depth of the angle parking spaces must be dimensioned on the site plan to confirm that they 

are large enough; the aisle in this location may be reduced to 18 feet wide.       
 
5. Outdoor Equipment and Screening.   The existing mechanical equipment is located behind the main 

building and is not visible from the road.   The dumpster must be screened in an enclosure that  



Northfield Township Planning Commission 
Living Water Church, 200 Barker Road SPR Review #1 
June 8, 2016 ~ Page 3 
 

conforms to [Section 36-701(3)], and details of that enclosure (color, height, materials) must be included 
on the plan. 
 

6. Stormwater Management.    The site’s existing detention area is at the rear of the parcel.  Paving the 
parking lot as discussed above, will likely require changes to the stormwater facilities.  This aspect is 
subject to the review of the Township engineer.     

 
7. Landscaping.  The Zoning Ordinance requires 1 canopy tree per 8 parking spaces.  There are 48 

proposed parking spaces, requiring 6 canopy trees.   The existing site has 7 trees, mostly evergreen at 
the Barker Road entrance. and there are several mature trees along the County drain that parallels the 
west side of the parking lot that provide greenery and shade for the paved area.  We recommend that 
the applicant create a new landscape island in the triangle where the angle parking transitions to 90-
degree parking and plant a canopy tree there, and incorporate several new canopy trees into the new 
part of the parking lot.  A plant list with number, variety and size of trees and shrubs at planting must be 
added, along with a maintenance plan specifying that dead or diseased trees will be replaced within 6 
months or the next appropriate growing season, whichever comes first.  
 

8. Lighting.   The plan does not show any new lighting.    The locations, type, height of mounting and cut 
sheets of any new lights must be submitted with the plan.  
 

9. Building Facades/Floor Plans.  Few changes are proposed to the exterior of the building.   Photos of all 
four building elevations and the elevation plans for the vestibule (identifying the dimensions, façade 
materials and colors) must be submitted for review.    The application narrative states that the 
outbuilding will be converted into a youth center in a second phase within the next two years.  In order 
to be approved now, a floor plan and elevations of that structure must be submitted, along with all 
required engineering information.   If the plan labels it as a future phase, the details could be approved 
administratively in the future; in that case, the outbuilding’s intended immediate use should be 
identified on the plan, the future phase described, and the holding tank removed from the site plan.   
 

10. Signs.   No new signs are proposed on the plan.  There is an existing wall sign on the front of the building 
and a small freestanding sign in the Barker Road right-of-way.   
 

RECOMMENDATION 
AS discussed above, there are several items of information and changes that need to be made to the site 
plan in order to comply with the Zoning Ordinance and considerations for conditional use approval.   
Therefore, we recommend that, prior to granting site plan approval, the Planning Commission direct the 
applicant to revise and resubmit the site plan to address the following: 
 

1. Correct the north arrow on all plan sheets; 
2. Correct the parking calculations on sheet SP consistent with Comment 4.a. above; 
3. Provide pavement for all parking, consistent with Comment 4.b. above; 
4. Setback all new parking spaces at least 10 feet from the lot lines, or provide a hedge or other 

screening; 
5. Dimension the depth of the angle parking spaces on the plan; 
6. Enclose the dumpster and provide enclosure details consistent with Comment 5. above; 



Northfield Township Planning Commission 
Living Water Church, 200 Barker Road SPR Review #1 
June 8, 2016 ~ Page 4 
 

7. Provide the parking lot canopy trees as described in Comment 7. on the parking lot landscape plan, 
and add a plant list with number, variety and size of trees and shrubs at planting, along with a 
maintenance plan specifying that dead or diseased trees will be replaced within 6 months or the 
next appropriate growing season, whichever comes first;  

8. The location, type, height of mounting and cut sheets of any new lights must be submitted and be 
concealed source, downward focused fixtures; 

9. Photos of all four building elevations and the elevation plans for the vestibule (identifying the 
dimensions, façade materials and colors) must be submitted; 

10. Provide information and address the future conversion of the outbuilding as described in Comment 
9. above; 

11. Approval of the Township engineer and approval of all agencies with jurisdiction; and  
12. Subject to conditional use approval. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
McKENNA ASSOCIATES 
 
 
 
 
Sara J. Hodges, AICP        Michael Deem 
Senior Vice President        Senior Planner 
 
 
cc:   Howard Fink, Northfield Township Manager, 8350 Main St., Whitmore Lake, MI  48189 
 Jacob Rushlow, OHM Advisors, 34000 Plymouth Road, Livonia, MI  48150 

Frank Murdock, President, Living Water Church, 9876 Main St., Whitmore Lake, MI 48189 
  
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(ATTACHMENT 2) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











































































































































 

 

  
 

May 31, 2016 

 

 

Northfield Township 

Building & Zoning Department 

8350 Main Street, Suite A 

Whitmore Lake, Michigan 48189 

 

Regarding: Verizon Wireless Site #144 

Site Plan Review #1 

OHM Job Number: 0151-16-1021 

Conditional Use Review #1 

OHM Job Number: 0151-16-1027 

 

We have reviewed the material, received by this office on May 24, 2016 for the above-referenced project 
based on the Township’s Engineering Standards.  Plans were prepared by Midwestern Consulting and have a 
latest revision date of May 19, 2016.  The new proposed site is slightly altered from the original proposed 
location.  The Applicant is requesting Conditional Use and Site Plan approval for the existing agricultural site.  
A general summary of the site, followed by our review comments and recommendations, is noted below. 

 

General 

The existing site is located on parcel #B-02-100-003 on the property of Fire Station #2 owned by Northfield 
Township.  The address of the fire station is 2727 East North Territorial Road, and the cell tower site will 
have a new address.  The site is currently zoned as AR, Agricultural District.  The Applicant is proposing to 
construct a new cell tower monopole and an equipment cabinet and propane tank enclosed by chain-link 
fence at the base of the tower.  The tower and enclosed fence is proposed on a 2,000 square foot lease area 
with access via a twelve-foot (12’) wide gravel driveway connecting to the back of the paved fire station 
driveway.  The site will also have landscaping around the outside of the fence. 

 

Utilities 

The site will have no water connections, and it will not produce any garbage, hazardous waste, or wastewater.  
The site will be serviced by electricity, telephone, and fiber-optic utilities.  The size of the site makes it exempt 
from Washtenaw County Water Resources Commission storm water detention requirements. 

 

Paving/Access/Traffic 

Access to the site is proposed to be provided from East North Territorial Road by way of a proposed gravel 
drive, which connects to the back of the existing paved fire station parking lot.  No parking spaces are 
required for this site.  A T-turnaround is proposed within the chain-link fenced area to allow vehicles to turn 
around when exiting the site. 

 

Proposed site access for emergency vehicle circulation and maneuverability will be evaluated by the 
Northfield Township Fire Department. 

 

Drainage/Grading 

Existing conditions appear to convey runoff overland from the south side of the site to the north side of the 
site.  There is an existing county drain, McCarty Drain No. 2, which is located approximately 130 feet north 



Verizon Wireless Site #144 
Site Plan Review #1 & Conditional Use Review #1 
May 31, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

of the site.  The proposed cross-section for the driveway indicates all runoff from the twelve-foot (12’) wide 
driveway will flow to the south.  Any runoff north of the driveway will flow to the north.  The local runoff on 
the south side of the driveway appears to flow west until it passes the fenced-in cell tower location where it 
follows the general flow pattern of the site and sheet-flows towards McCarty Drain No. 2.  In general, the 
drainage properties of the proposed site are the same as the existing site. 

 

Existing grades are shown via contours, and proposed grades are shown via contours, which connect to the 
existing contours. 

 

Permits and Other Agency Approvals 

Copies of all permits and/or letters of waiver, obtained to date, shall be forwarded to this office.  The current 
status of all necessary permits should be included on the cover sheet.  We note that this project will require 
the following permits: 

 

• Washtenaw County Water Resources Commission (WCWRC) for soil erosion and sedimentation 
control. 

• Northfield Township Fire Department approval for emergency vehicle access and maneuverability. 

 

Conclusion and Recommendations 

As submitted, the Conditional Use application appears to be in substantial compliance with the Township 
requirements, and we recommend the Planning Commission consider approval, conditional on the site plan 
being approved. 

 

As submitted, the Site Plan appears to be in substantial compliance with the Northfield Township Site Plan 
requirements.  We take no exception to the proposed site plan and recommend the Planning Commission 
consider approval conditional on the following comments being addressed administratively: 

 

1. The boundaries of the lease area shall be clarified and dimensioned on the plans. 

2. Soil erosion and sedimentation control measures shall be shown on the plans. 

3. Proposed electric, telephone, and fiber-optic utilities shall be shown and labeled on the plans. 

 

If you have any questions regarding this review or any of the comments presented, feel free to contact us at 
(734) 522-6711 or jacob.rushlow@ohm-advisors.com. 

 

Sincerely, 

OHM ADVISORS  

 

 

     Jacob Rushlow, P.E. 

     Township Engineer  

 
cc: Howard Fink, Township Manager (via e-mail) 

William Wagner, Public Safety Director (via e-mail) 
Kurt Weiland, Building/Zoning Official (via e-mail) 
Ken Dignan, Planning Commission Chair (via e-mail) 
Sally Hodges, AICP, McKenna (via e-mail) 

 File 

 
P:\0126_0165\SITE_NorthfieldTwp\2016\0151161020_Verizon_Wireless_Site_#144\1021-SP\Verizon_Wireless_Site_#144_SP1.docx 



 

June 9, 2016 
 
Planning Commission 
Northfield Township  
8350 Main Street 
Whitmore Lake, MI 48189-0576 
 
Subject: Verizon Monopole/2727 East North Territorial Road; Conditional Use Review #3 and Site Plan 

Review #2; Revised site plan dated 5/19/16 & landscape plan dated 5/27/16 – Received 6/6/16. 
 
Dear Commissioners: 
 
We have reviewed the revised conditional 
use application submitted by RJP 
Consulting on behalf of Verizon Wireless, 
to construct a new 150-foot tall wireless 
monopole at Township Fire Station #2, 
2727 E. North Territorial Road.   Along with 
a monopole, the applicant proposes an 
equipment shelter at the base of the 
tower, to be enclosed with chain link fence 
around a 2,000 sq. ft. lease area.  The site 
is zoned AR (Agricultural) District.     
   
Under the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act 
(MZEA), a new wireless communication 
facility can be reviewed as a conditional 
land use, subject to the information and 
requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. The 
MZEA also imposes time limits on the local 
review process.  Wireless communication 
facilities are permitted in the AR District 
subject to conditional use approval per 
Section 36-838 of the Township Zoning 
Ordinance.   
 
The applicant appeared before the Planning Commission for a public hearing on May 4, 2016, and was 
directed to address certain outstanding issues and make revisions to the plan prior to resubmitting.  The 
applicant subsequently revised the plan to move the location of the tower northwest of the previously 
proposed location, increased the tower height from 120’ to 150’, and resubmitted a plan which we reviewed. 
We then met with the applicant to resolve issues and concerns that remained.  The applicant has made 
additional revisions and resubmitted plans for your consideration.      
 
CONDITIONAL USE AND SITE PLAN COMMENTS 
Conditional use approval of wireless communication facilities is subject to the specific standards listed in 
Section 36-720 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the general standards in Section 36-838 applicable to all 
conditional uses.   
 



Northfield Township Planning Commission 
Verizon Monopole/2727 East N. Territorial Road, CU Rev. #3 and Site Plan Rev. #2 
June 9, 2016 ~ Page 2 
 

A. Application Requirements Specific to Wireless Communications Facilities [Section 36-720 (c)(2)].  All the 
requirements of this section have been met.   

 
B.  Section 36-720 (c)(4). Specific Factors Related to Wireless Communication Facilities.  The Planning 

Commission may waive or reduce any of the following requirements if it determines that doing so better 
serves the goals of this section.  Matters relating to the height of tower, proximity of tower to residential 
structures and residential district boundaries, nature of uses on surrounding properties, topography, 
ingress and egress and ability to accommodate additional colocators have been adequately addressed. 

 
1. Surrounding tree coverage and foliage (sub-section e).  The N. Territorial Rd. frontage of the fire 

station is lawn and wide open to accommodate public safety vehicles and visibility. Based on 
discussion at the public hearing, the tower has been moved northwest of the previously proposed 
location to place it behind a wooded area that will help screen the tower, the equipment and fence 
from view of N. Territorial Road.  As discussed with the applicant, evergreen tree screening should be 
provided on the west side of the fence to shield the base of the tower from view to the west.  The 
evergreen trees should be planted leaf-to-leaf to create an effective visual barrier.      

 
2. Availability of suitable existing towers, others structures or alternative technology (sub-section f).  

Propagation maps have been submitted illustrating existing coverage without the facility and 
projected coverage that can be obtained with the new tower.  Possible colocations on two other 
existing towers within the 2-mile separation distance are also addressed with coverage maps, showing 
that those colocations would still not address the gap in service along N. Territorial that is being filled 
by the new facility.    
 
The applicant states that the height of the tower was increased from 120’ to 150’ to enhance the 
ability to accommodate colocators on the tower “at a useful height”.  A 120’ tall tower, while 
adequate for Verizon would not be appealing to new colocators for their coverage needs.  The taller 
tower allows Verizon to occupy the highest point and still have viable colocation options for other 
carriers also at significant heights. 

 
Per Section 36-720(d)(1) sub-section a., no tower may be located within 2 miles of another 
commercial communication tower.  The tower location map shows that the proposed new tower 
would be within 1.7 and 1.9 miles of two other commercial towers.  An AT&T tower approved in late 
2014 at 6741 Sutton Rd (about 0.5 miles away) has not been constructed and the site plan approval 
granted to it has expired.   However, the Zoning Ordinance also permits the Planning Commission to 
waive the Ordinance’s separation requirements, if it determines that “the proposed tower is of 
exceptional design so as to create a positive architectural and/or environmental feature which is 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area and community”.   
 
According to the Township Public Safety Director, vehicles frequently drive over the septic field on the 
east side of the fire station as a cut-through, potentially damaging the septic system.   In response, 
the applicant proposes to install densely planted evergreens on the northeast and southeast corners 
of the fire station building to create an effective deterrent for vehicles, and also to plant additional 
trees along the site’s two driveways.  This will enhance the appearance of the site from N. Territorial 
Road and create improved buffering of the monopole.  The landscape plan identifies a row of Hetzi 
columnar junipers spaced 10 feet apart at the two corners of the building, Chinese junipers places 10 
feet apart along the east access drive, and Norway and White spruce trees 20-25 feet apart along the 
west access drive.  The Hetzi columnar junipers must be placed no more than 5 feet apart to create an 



Northfield Township Planning Commission 
Verizon Monopole/2727 East N. Territorial Road, CU Rev. #3 and Site Plan Rev. #2 
June 9, 2016 ~ Page 3 
 

impenetrable screen.   We believe the addition of the overall site landscaping addresses a significant 
public concern.  By adding trees that will grow tall and full in the line of sight to the tower, the 
landscape improvements can be considered as creating a positive environmental feature required to 
approve the less-than-2-mile separation between towers.  This matter is subject to the determination 
of the Commission. 
 

C. Section 36-720 (c)(5) Availability of Existing Towers or Other Structures or Alternate Technology.  This 
has been adequately addressed, as discussed in Comment B.2 above.   

 
D. Section 36-720 (d).  General Regulations for all wireless communication towers: 
 

1. Location of towers or structures.  The closest dwelling is 725 feet from the proposed tower.  We 
estimate that 4 houses are located within 1,000 feet of the proposed tower.  The 150’ fall zone for 
the tower is within the fire station parcel and does not impact any existing structures.  The proposed 
equipment cabinet for Verizon and future equipment cabinets are shown within the fenced-in lease 
area.  Any future expansion to allow for additional colocators and associated equipment will be 
subject to compliance with the Township lease agreement.    
 

2. Access.  Access to the tower lease area is unobstructed. 
 

3. Structural design and installation.  The applicant agrees to comply with all applicable governmental, 
health and industry safety standards and FAA and FCC regulations and standards required, including 
but not limited to grounding of the tower, ability to bear wind loads, structural stability and 
radiation output.   
 

4. Lighting.  The tower is not proposed to be illuminated.  The plan indicates that the equipment 
shelter/generator will have with 2 low intensity (10w) LED lights connected to a technician operated 
on/off switch with a maximum lit duration of 2 hours.  The lights will be activated only during 
servicing or repair.   

 
5. Height.  The proposed tower complies with the maximum permitted height of 180 feet. 
 
6. Design. The tower is proposed as a galvanized steel monopole designed to blend ‘into the sky’. The 

location of the tower behind a wooded area helps to screen the base of the tower, fence and 
equipment cabinet from the public right-of-way.  The addition of evergreen screening (Comment B.1 
above), and increasing the size of the columnar junipers (Comment B.2 above) will also help mitigate 
any perceived negative visual impacts of the tower.    
 

7. Fencing and Landscaping. The site plan shows 6 ft. chain link fence around the equipment area.  As 
noted previously, we recommend the addition of evergreen trees placed leaf-to-leaf on the west 
side of the fence area to provide increased screening from the west.   The documentation submitted 
includes a maintenance plan for all the plantings.  The trees outside the lease area are covered 
under the lease agreement with the Township.    

 
8. Employees. The facility will be unmanned, with periodic visits by maintenance personnel. 
 
9. Site plan required. The site plan has been submitted.  
 



Northfield Township Planning Commission 
Verizon Monopole/2727 East N. Territorial Road, CU Rev. #3 and Site Plan Rev. #2 
June 9, 2016 ~ Page 4 
 

10. Franchises.  According to the Township, compliance is addressed in the lease agreement. 
 
11. Engineering certification. The site plan set is signed and stamped by a licensed engineer. 
 
12. Non-essential services.  The proposed monopole is being reviewed for compliance to zoning and not 

as an essential service, public or private utility.   
 
13. Cessation of operation.  Removal of the tower and/or antennae in the event of cessation of 

operation of the tower is addressed in the lease agreement with the Township.   
 
14. Division of property prohibited.  No division is proposed. 
 
15. Facility not to be used for advertising.  No advertising is proposed. 
 
16. Security.  The required financial guarantee for removal of the tower is addressed in the lease 

agreement with the Township.  
 

E. Section 36-838. General Conditional Use Approval Requirements.  In addition to complying with the 
specific requirements for wireless facilities enumerated above, for conditional use approval to be granted, 
the Planning Commission and Township Board must find that the proposed use satisfies the following 
general criteria: 

 
1. Will be harmonious with and in accordance with the general objectives, intent and purpose of this 

article.  The proposed tower is located in an agriculturally zoned and master planned district and is 
not close to any concentration of uses.  According to the applicant, the proposed tower is similar in 
appearance or perception to other large structures likes wind turbines and high voltage transmission 
lines that are commonly found in agricultural areas.   Documentation has been provided to justify the 
need for a new tower and to address any concerns over its visual impact.      

 
2. Will be designed, constructed, operated, maintained and managed so as to be harmonious and 

appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity. The 
vicinity is master planned AG, Agricultural for farming and single family dwellings on lots 5 acres and 
larger.  The tower and associated ground-mounted equipment will be within a fenced area and 
accessed from the fire station’s paved driveway and a gravel drive.  The relocation of the tower 
northwest of the previous location behind a wooded area screens the base of the tower from N. 
Territorial Road.  The recommended addition of evergreen trees on the west side of the fenced area 
will screen the base of the tower from view to the west.      

 
 The facility will be unmanned and will be visited by maintenance personnel 2 to 4 times per month.  

The gravel drive and T-turn area inside the fence will be gravel surface; given the infrequent traffic to 
the enclosure, we believe the Commission could find this surface sufficient.  A maintenance statement 
on the site plan assures that site problems will be corrected in accordance with Township 
requirements and a letter addresses weed control, and removal of snow and debris.  The required 
landscape maintenance plan with replacement guarantee has been noted on the site plan.  

 
3.  Will be compatible with the natural environment and existing and future uses in the vicinity.   The 

new location of the proposed tower behind the woods has greatly improved the screening of the 



Northfield Township Planning Commission 
Verizon Monopole/2727 East N. Territorial Road, CU Rev. #3 and Site Plan Rev. #2 
June 9, 2016 ~ Page 5 
 

facility (tower base, fence and equipment shelter) and its compatibility with existing and future uses.  
With the addition of evergreen trees on the west side of the fence, the screening would be improved.   

 
 The fire station is a necessary public safety facility.  The surroundings are generally intended to be 

very low density residential and agricultural uses.  The applicant’s proposal to add evergreen trees to 
the northwest and southeast corners of the existing building and include additional trees along the 
sides of the driveway, provides a public and environmental benefit.   The statements regarding 
floodplain, wetlands and wildlife are satisfactory.  

 
4. Will be compatible with the Township land use development plan.  The Township Master Plan 

designates the site for low density single family development, farms and farm structures, scenic 
corridors, landscape features such as fields and similar.   The Plan does not anticipate a concentration 
of population here and the Zoning Ordinance mirrors the Master Plan by requiring, under ordinary 
conditions, tower separations of 2 miles or more.  However, the site is near a minor arterial road 
carrying higher volumes of traffic and is part of the Township fire station where communication 
facilities are common features.   The propagation maps adequately demonstrate the need for a new 
facility which cannot be met by collocating on any of the existing towers within 2 miles.  While not a 
feature tower (which could seem out of place), the proposed addition of significant landscaping 
around the fire station is a positive environmental improvement compatible with the existing and 
planned surroundings.   

 
5. Will be or can be served adequately by essential public facilities and services.    Access is to N. 

Territorial Road, a paved minor arterial road, via the fire station’s existing paved driveway and a 
gravel drive.   The only utilities required are electricity and fiber optic service, both of which are 
available.   Fire protection is on-site. 

 
6. Will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future neighboring uses.   Since the tower is less 

than 200 feet in height, the FCC does not require lights and the Zoning Ordinance prohibits other 
tower illumination.  The plan also states that any noise generated by the tower, equipment cabinet or 
generator will be documented to ensure that the noise does not exceed what is typical for a 
residential area.   We do not anticipate the tower being hazardous or disturbing to the existing or 
future neighboring uses.  

 
7. Will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services.  No 

water or sanitary sewer connections are needed; power and fiber optic service are available.  No 
additional infrastructure or public services are required.  There are no public funds required. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
Since the public hearing, the applicant has worked to address areas of concern and provide documentation to 
address the requirements of the Ordinance.  Unlike most wireless tower applications, the location of the 
tower at the fire station affords the Township greater control over the improvements and maintenance of the 
facility as compared to a location on private property.   We believe the applicant has addressed the major 
issues relating to this proposal, and the few minor remaining items do not warrant a delay in the Planning 
Commission’s consideration of action on the project.  Further, because the site plan items remaining are 
minor, we can support the Planning Commission acting on both conditional use and site plan requests at the 
same meeting. 
 
 



Northfield Township Planning Commission 
Verizon Monopole/2727 East N. Territorial Road, CU Rev. #3 and Site Plan Rev. #2 
June 9, 2016 ~ Page 6 
 

Therefore, we recommend the Commission take the following two actions: 
 

1. That the Planning Commission recommend conditional use approval for the proposed monopole to 
the Township Board of Trustees, subject to the following conditions: 
 
a. Determination by the Commission that the significant additional landscaping proposed along the 

two fire station driveways and at the corners of the fire station building allows the tower 
installation to be considered exceptional design and a positive environmental feature sufficient to 
allow for the placement of this monopole less than 2 miles from 2 other existing towers;   

b. Addition of evergreen trees placed leaf-to-leaf on the west side of the fenced-in lease area; and  
c. Site plan approval. 

 
2. That the Planning Commission grant site plan approval for the proposed monopole to be located at 

2727 N. Territorial Road, subject to the following conditions: 
 
a. Conditional use approval by the Township Board; 
b. Increasing the number of Hetzi columnar junipers proposed by reducing the proposed spacing to 

5 feet apart to create an impenetrable screen;  
c. Notation that the light fixtures on the equipment shelter will be used only when providing service 

to the equipment; and  
d. Subject to approval of the Township engineer and all agencies with jurisdiction.   

 
Under the MZEA’s “shot clock”, after an initial 14-day period, the Township has 90 days to take action on a 
new tower or the application could be determined to be approved.  In this case that date is June 29th.  
Therefore, if recommended for approval by the Commission, the conditional use application should be placed 
on the next Township Board agenda for action.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
McKENNA ASSOCIATES 
 
 
 
Sara J. Hodges, AICP        Vidya Krishnan  
Senior Vice President        Senior Planner 
 
 
cc:   Howard Fink, Township Manager 
 New ParA Delaware Partnership DBA Verizon Wireless, 24242 Northwestern Hwy., Southfield, MI 48075 

 



 

 

NORTHFIELD TOWNSHIP 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

Minutes of Regular Meeting 

May 18, 2016 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Vice-Chair Janet 
Chick at 7:00 P.M. at 8350 Main Street. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. ROLL CALL 

AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

Roll call:  
Janet Chick Present 
Marlene Chockley Present 
Brad Cousino Present (arrived 7:10 P.M.) 
Kenneth Dignan Absent with notice 
Sam Iaquinto Present 
Larry Roman Present 
Mark Stanalajczo 
 

Present 

Also present: 
Township Manager Howard Fink 
Assessing & Building Assistant Mary Bird 
Planning Consultant Sally Hodges, McKenna Associates 
Recording Secretary Lisa Lemble 
Members of the Community 

 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 Motion: Iaquinto moved, Roman supported, that 
the agenda be adopted as presented.  
Motion carried 5—0 on a voice vote. 

5. FIRST CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

David Gordon, 5558 Hellner Road, urged preservation 
of open space and farmland.  

6. CLARIFICATIONS FROM COMMISSION 

None. 

7. CORRESPONDENCE 

None. 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

None. 

9. REPORTS 

7A. Board of Trustees  

Chick reported on the Board’s May 10th meeting, 
including approval of soils testing for a possible 
sewage equalization basin. 
 

7B. ZBA 

Chockley reported a front yard setback variance was 
granted at the May 16th meeting to allow the addition of 
a garage to an existing home. 

7C. Staff Report 

Fink reported the Township has signed a purchase 
agreement for the Van Curler property.  
 
Stanalajczo referred to the AT&T cellular tower 
proposal presented at the last meeting and suggested 
that proposals not be placed on an agenda unless they 
are ready for consideration. 
 
7D. Planning Consultant 

Nothing to report. 
 
[Cousino arrived]. 
 

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

10A. Proposed Lake Overlay District Zoning 

Ordinance Amendments. 

Hodges reviewed the proposed ordinance amendment 
and map which she had prepared at the direction of 
the Commission based on previous discussions 
regarding changing setbacks in some lake districts. She 
answered questions about the proposed zero setback 
on the street side of Horseshoe Lake lots and 
requirements for setbacks from private roads. The 
Commission discussed possibly increasing the lakeside 
building setback requirement from the existing 20 feet 
to 25 to match the wetlands setback required 
elsewhere in the ordinance. 
 
 Motion: Stanalajczo moved, Chick supported, to 

set the public hearing for the Whitmore Lake and 
Horseshoe Lake overlay amendments. 
Motion carried 6—0 on a roll call vote. 

10B. Discussion of 2016 Goals & Objectives 

The Commission discussed the list of goals and 
objectives prepared by Chair Dignan based on feedback 
from Commissioners. 

 Motion: Iaquinto moved, Stanalajczo supported, to 
adopt as the goals and objectives for the Planning 
Commission to address in 2016 the list as 
reviewed which starts with “Discussion of Business 
Oriented Zonings” and ends with “Scenic Vistas 
Inventory/Identification.”   
Motion carried 6—0 on a roll call vote. 



Northfield Township Planning Commission 

Minutes of Regular Meeting 

Public Safety Building; 8350 Main Street 

May 18, 2016 

 

 

2 

11. NEW BUSINESS 

11A. Review Zoning Board of Appeals Standards for 

Determination for Variances. 

Hodges reviewed her May 11th memo and 
recommended changes to Section 36-943, Variances, of 
the Township’s zoning ordinance to clarify the 
authority of the ZBA and to bring the language into 
compliance with State law. Commissioners 
recommended minor changes. 

 Motion: Iaquinto moved, Stanalajczo supported, to 
set the public hearing for the next available time 
for the changes to the Variances section of the 
Northfield Township zoning ordinance.  
Motion carried 6—0 on a roll call vote. 

12. MINUTES 

May 4, 2016, Regular Meeting 

Chockley made three corrections. 
 

 Motion: Chockley moved, Stanalajczo supported, that 
the minutes of the May 4, 2016, regular meeting be 
approved as corrected, and to dispense with the 
reading. Motion carried 6—0 on a voice vote. 

13. SECOND CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

David Gordon said the Commission’s goals and 
objectives should concentrate on preservation of open 
space rather than business and downtown 
development. 

14. COMMENTS FROM THE COMMISSIONERS 

Chockley proposed considering a ban on coal-tar based 
asphalt seal-coating. The Commission made brief 
comments in response to David Gordon’s comments 
about goals and objectives.  

Roman suggested that reports on topics before the 
Commission be fully presented before Commissioners 
make comments and ask questions. 

15. ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 

June 1, 2016, at 7:00 P.M. at the Public Safety Building 
was announced as the next regular Commission 
meeting time and location.  
 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

 Motion: Roman moved, Cousino supported, that 
the meeting be adjourned. 
Motion carried 6—0 on a voice vote. 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:55 P.M. 

 
 

 
 
Prepared by Lisa Lemble. 
Corrections to the originally issued minutes are indicated as follows: 
 Wording removed is stricken through; 
 Wording added is underlined. 
 
Adopted on ______________________________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________________________ 
Kenneth Dignan, Chair 
 

___________________________________________________ 
Mark Stanalajczo, Secretary 

 
Official minutes of all meetings are available on the Township’s website at  
http://www.twp-northfield.org/government/ 

 

http://www.twp-northfield.org/government/

